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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am Councilman

          3  Stan Michels, Chairman of the Environmental

          4  Protection Committee, and I want to welcome all of

          5  you to this hearing on proposed Intro. No. 531-A,

          6  which is to amend the Administrative Code for the

          7  City of New York, in relation to motor fuel storage

          8  and dispensing systems. I extend a special welcome

          9  to representatives of the New York City Fire

         10  Department and representatives here today of the

         11  gasoline industry. I know how important this issue

         12  is to you and as well as to the many citizens of the

         13  City of New York.

         14                 This Committee has held two oversight

         15  hearings over the past year dealing with the

         16  stricter federal and state regulations of

         17  underground storage tanks.

         18                 On February 26th, 1999, the Committee

         19  held an oversight hearing on the regulations

         20  regarding underground storage tanks and the

         21  enforcement in the City of New York by the United

         22  States Environmental Protection Agency of new

         23  federal standards on underground storage tanks.

         24                 The Committee then held a follow-up

         25  hearing on March 19, 1999, on the compliance with
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          2  federal regulations for underground storage tanks

          3  and the status of the efforts to identify and

          4  remediate contamination from previous underground

          5  storage tank leaks.

          6                 Proposed Intro. No. 531-A amends the

          7  Administrative Code with respect to underground

          8  storage tank construction, tank capacity, corrosion

          9  control, fill boxes, leak detection, tank and piping

         10  installation and testing.

         11                 Proposed No. 531-A, Intro. 531-A

         12  incorporates the language of Intro. No. 531 and

         13  amends it.

         14                 The current code does not, in many

         15  respects, comply technically with the federal and

         16  state requirements. Proposed Intro. No. 531-A

         17  therefore incorporates federal and state standards

         18  and coordinates City and state Fire Department

         19  testing cycles. It codifies, and therefore now makes

         20  legal, the current practice of installing larger

         21  underground storage tanks at stations, which is now

         22  only permitted through a New York City Fire

         23  Department Waiver process.

         24                 There are also new safety provisions

         25  within proposed Intro. No. 531-A. Some of them
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          2  include, and that is what this legislation includes:

          3                 - requiring automatic overfill

          4  protection on tanks.

          5                 The current code has no such

          6  requirement.

          7                 - permitting the installation of

          8  larger, that is up to 12,000 gallon tanks.

          9  Technology developed since the code was first

         10  written has shown that larger tanks reduce the

         11  number of connections required, and therefore,

         12  removes the number of leak problems.

         13                 Larger tanks may also reduce the

         14  number of tank truck deliveries per station,

         15  reducing the number of hazardous cargo deliveries

         16  traveling city streets and highways.

         17                 - Amends the code to permit the Fire

         18  Department to give license exams for installers of

         19  USTs.

         20                 Currently, the Department of Citywide

         21  Administrative Services are responsible for

         22  administering such exams. Transferring this process

         23  to FDNY will reduce the waiting time for applicants

         24  and would ensure that the industry has available

         25  enough licensed installers to do installations and
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          2  maintenance.

          3                 - allows the Commissioner the

          4  discretion to approve new technologies with respect

          5  to USTs, appurtenant piping, valves and dispensing

          6  equipment. This would permit the us of

          7  state-of-the-art technology without the need to

          8  change local law every time a new and proven

          9  technology becomes available.

         10                 These are just a few examples of what

         11  proposed Intro. No. 531-A intends to accomplish. The

         12  Fire Department will testify to the specifics of the

         13  bill and get into more detail. This is a bill that

         14  is in conjunction with the Mayor and full

         15  cooperation of the Council and the Mayor's Office.

         16                 With me today are Council Members

         17  Robles from Brooklyn and Sabini of Queens. We will

         18  be joined from time to time by other Council

         19  Members, but nevertheless, I will say at the outset,

         20  we will not be voting on this legislation today,

         21  since it is on apparently for the first time today.

         22  And also Council Member Boyland, from Brooklyn, who

         23  is joining us.

         24                 I do regard this as a technical but

         25  extremely important piece of legislation, and I know
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          2  you do and that is why so much time and effort has

          3  been devoted to it.

          4                 I have before me members of the Fire

          5  Department, and if you will identify yourselves, we

          6  will then commence with your testimony.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. BARBARA: Good afternoon. I am

          9  Gerard A. Barbara, I am the Chief of Fire

         10  Prevention.

         11                 MR. HANSEN: Jim Hansen, an engineer

         12  at the Fire --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You will have to

         14  speak up. Hansen?

         15                 MR. HANSEN: Hansen.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: H-a-n-s-o-n?

         17                 MR. HANSEN: H-a-n-s-e-n.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: E-n, I am sorry.

         19  You have to move closer.

         20                 MR. HANSEN: An engineer at the Fire

         21  Department.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Move the mic

         23  closer to you. It won't bite you, just speak into

         24  it, because we do want to hear everything you have

         25  to say.
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          2                 Whoever wants to lead, start.

          3                 Do you have prepared testimony? Yes.

          4  Mr. Barbara has that.

          5                 MR. BARBARA: Chairman Michels and

          6  Members of the Environmental Protection Committee,

          7  the Fire Department thanks the Committee for

          8  scheduling this hearing on this proposed local law

          9  and for the opportunity to express the Department's

         10  support of the bill.

         11                 As we prepare to move into a new

         12  century and a new millennium, the Fire Department

         13  has undertaken a comprehensive review of the City's

         14  Fire Prevention Code.

         15                 Our goal is to modernize and

         16  streamline the Code, eliminating outdated provisions

         17  and enabling the Fire Department to keep pace with

         18  developing technologies.

         19                 The present bill is the first step in

         20  that process. The bill will eliminate outdated

         21  requirements and restrictions governing the storage

         22  and use of motor fuel at service stations. It will

         23  allow the use of new motor fuel storage and

         24  dispensing technology that is more protective of

         25  fire safety and the environment.
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          2                 The bill allows for larger double

          3  wall tanks, but requires leak detection systems,

          4  detainment systems and overfill protection. Taken

          5  together, these changes reduce the risks of leaks

          6  and fuel spills, minimizing fire hazards and

          7  pollution for the environment.

          8                 Many of the proposed changes are

          9  necessary to conform the Fire Prevention Code to

         10  federal and state law and regulations.

         11                 As you know, the United States

         12  Environmental Protection Agency adopted regulations

         13  requiring the modernization of fuel storage systems

         14  by December of 1998.

         15                 These regulations, and those adopted

         16  by the New York State Department of Environmental

         17  Conservation, have imposed strict standards for all

         18  new and substantially modified fuel storage

         19  facilities. This bill will facilitate compliance

         20  with the federal and state regulations by

         21  eliminating conflicting fire prevention code

         22  provisions, and allowing approval of permit

         23  applications in a more expeditious manner.

         24                 As amended, the Fire Prevention Code

         25  which set forth permit and licensing requirements,
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          2  basic safety standards and prohibited conduct and

          3  required that the installation and use of specific

          4  types of motor fuel storage and dispensing equipment

          5  be in accordance with the rules adopted by the Fire

          6  Commissioner.

          7                 This would ensure that appropriate

          8  safety standards for motor fuel storage and

          9  dispensing equipment are maintained without

         10  inhibiting development and use of new equipment.

         11                 The proposed local law and rules will

         12  also clarify, simplify and consolidate fire

         13  prevention code provisions, enhancing understanding,

         14  encouraging compliance, and facilitating licensing.

         15                 In conclusion, we urge the Committee

         16  to give this proposed local law favorable

         17  consideration. We thank you. And if the members of

         18  the Committee have any questions, we would be glad

         19  to address them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Barbara.

         22                 Are there any other statements by

         23  your other associates?

         24                 MR. BARBARA: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.
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          2                 Please describe the City's current

          3  fuel storage tank regulations, and how these

          4  regulations are and are not in compliance with

          5  federal and state regulations. I know you touched on

          6  that in your statement, but just give us an overview

          7  on that in general.

          8                 MR. HANSEN: The City's current

          9  regulations are lacking in a lot of areas that the

         10  federal government and state regulations are not.

         11                 Four or five of the areas that I can

         12  identify right off the bat, number one, is corrosion

         13  protection for both tanks and piping. The federal

         14  government regulations and state regulations are

         15  significantly more detailed in this area. The City

         16  regulations are lacking and actually have no

         17  provisions for corrosion protection of pipes or

         18  tanks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are going to

         20  have to move that mic a little closer. Move the mic

         21  in. Your voice is going down at the end of your

         22  statement.

         23                 MR. HANSEN: Another aspect of the

         24  installation or regulations in New York City that

         25  are not consistent with the federal and the state is
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          2  requirements for a leak detection on both piping and

          3  the tanks.

          4                 They have very specific requirements

          5  and we in many cases don't have requirements at all

          6  for leak detections, so that would straighten out

          7  that issue of leak detection.

          8                 A couple of major problems that you

          9  have with gasoline leaks at service stations is the

         10  delivery hose creates a leak right at the fill

         11  connection and we have a spill. Federal government

         12  and state requires for catchment base and around the

         13  fill connection, which hopefully will contain that

         14  leak and not allow it to spread the new regulations.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And these things

         16  that you mention are all being taken care of in

         17  531-A? Or the regulation --

         18                 MR. HANSEN: The rules associated with

         19  that, that's correct. All of them would be taken

         20  care of.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the reason

         22  is that we don't cover them and we leave it to the

         23  regulations is why we are letting you do so much

         24  regulating, as opposed to codifying all of these

         25  various provisions.
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          2                 MR. BAZEL: Let me respond to that.

          3  When we approach this subject, as well as many of

          4  the other subjects in the Fire Code, we find that m

          5  any of the provisions, detailed provisions are

          6  hopelessly outdated and it is time to bring them up

          7  to date.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Outdated for

          9  what reason? They are old or just because the

         10  technology has changed?

         11                 MR. BAZEL: Old and the technology has

         12  changed.

         13                 I mean, if you actually read the code

         14  there are references to wagons, to air ships, to,

         15  you know, all sorts of activities.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oxin.

         17                 MR. BAZEL: Well, I didn't say

         18  anything on oxin, but it is possible.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Circling wagons.

         20                 MR. BAZEL: And the terminology, the

         21  references are outdated.

         22                 We --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How old are

         24  these regulations? When was the last time we changed

         25  any of them? Does anybody know?
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          2                 MR. BAZEL: I would think that they

          3  are several decades old at least. Probably, many of

          4  them.

          5                 MR. BARBARA: The last time it was

          6  revised, I think it went from a 550 gallon tank, as

          7  the largest tank, to 4,000. And that was about 20

          8  years ago perhaps.

          9                 MR. HANSEN: But the approach that we

         10  took, and I would think makes the most sense, and it

         11  is followed in other portions of the Administrative

         12  Code, is to try to use the code to establish general

         13  requirements, general prohibitions on conduct,

         14  general license and permit requirements, and

         15  essentially certain key elements that we believe

         16  should be in the code. And to leave a lot of the

         17  details to rules, which will enable us to respond

         18  more quickly to, you know, developing technology and

         19  to the industry coming in and saying, you know, we

         20  no longer need to do things this way, we would

         21  rather do it a different way. As you know, it takes

         22  a lot of time to draft legislation, it has to be

         23  reviewed and proposed, introduced and there are many

         24  other conflicting priorities and that process has

         25  proved, for whatever reason in the past, not to be
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          2  as expeditious as coming out with a rule and getting

          3  public comment on it and responding accordingly.

          4                 And just based on the past track

          5  record where these codes don't get revised very

          6  frequently, and especially in the kind of technology

          7  that the Fire Department is dealing with on a

          8  regular basis there are constant developments, it

          9  just was felt that the best way to approach it was

         10  to try to leave the details to rules, and that would

         11  be the most responsive way of doing it.

         12                 So that is the theory we are

         13  proceeding on.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are there any

         15  other instances that you want to give of the

         16  difference between the present law and the federal

         17  and state regulations which would bring it into

         18  compliance?

         19                 MR. BARBARA: One more that I would

         20  like to add is the requirement of overfill

         21  prevention. Very often the cause of the spill is

         22  that the delivery truck driver fails to pay

         23  attention and he may overfill the tank coming out

         24  the vent line and federal and state requirements

         25  have overfill prevention requirements and the Fire
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          2  Department regulations would require overfill

          3  prevention for tanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And so those are

          5  the differences between the presently existing law

          6  and the federal and state, basic differences.

          7                 And then we also say this proposed

          8  legislation compliments the state and federal

          9  regulations; in which way does it compliment it?

         10                 MR. BAZEL: Well, most importantly by

         11  eliminating the conflicting provisions.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, as you indicated in

         13  your prepared remarks, in your opening statement, we

         14  have had in the past to proceed on an individual

         15  variance procedure because technically the

         16  installation, the installations that were being

         17  proposed by permit applicants, while in compliance

         18  with federal and state regulations, were not in

         19  compliance with the New York City Fire Prevention

         20  Code. Technically we are obliged to comply with the

         21  Fire Code. So, we have been proceeding on an

         22  individual --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I understand

         24  the Fire Code was even more strict than federal and

         25  state law?
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          2                 MR. BAZEL: Well, I wouldn't say it is

          3  more strict, I think the federal regulations

          4  everyone acknowledges are more protective of the

          5  environment and more appropriate given the current

          6  technology. The point is though, it is a law, we are

          7  obliged to follow it, and we have proceeded on an

          8  individual variance basis. By conforming or

          9  eliminating the obstacles in the current code, it

         10  now allows the process to proceed as it normally

         11  would. I mean, people would come in, their proposals

         12  if in conformance with federal and state regulation

         13  would now be also consistent with the City and it

         14  can be done in a much more straightforward manner,

         15  you know, as sort of an as of right sort of approach

         16  rather than sort of an individualized approach.

         17  Maybe as of right isn't quite the right word, but it

         18  is a more routine approach.

         19                 So that is probably the most

         20  significant thing, is that we are eliminating the

         21  obstacles and I do think that in other ways,

         22  generally by cleaning up the code and clarifying

         23  some of the language, it generally enhances

         24  understanding and makes it easier for people to go

         25  through the process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have all of

          3  these different regulations and each one has

          4  something different, and the person has to comply

          5  with them all and it makes more difficulty, and

          6  becomes more difficult to comply with, people just

          7  throw up their hands and say, oh, I give up, I will

          8  take my summons or whatever it is. But this way we

          9  are trying to make it more consistent and more

         10  easily complied with.

         11                 Now, you don't know of any instance,

         12  or I guess you have already studied, I should say,

         13  and you are satisfied with the draft that we have of

         14  proposed Intro. 531-A, is not preempted by any

         15  federal or state regulations?

         16                 MR. BAZEL: Not at all.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is consistent

         18  with those?

         19                 MR. BAZEL: Absolutely. And of course,

         20  the City's proposed legislation is reviewed by the

         21  Law Department and they specifically review it for

         22  that kind of issue and they have approved this, so

         23  we don't see any issue with that at all.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, if you

         25  could, could you take us through the existing
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          2  regulatory process, both the state and the federal,

          3  for the installers and maintainers of motor fuel

          4  storage tanks and the dispensing equipment.

          5                 Don't get in too much detail, just

          6  give us --

          7                 MR. BARBARA: I can speak of the

          8  City's process. The City's process now, if anybody

          9  desires to install an underground motor fuel storage

         10  tank, the first thing they have to do is file with

         11  the Building Department to obtain a work permit.

         12                 Building Department will not issue a

         13  work permit until the Fire Department has reviewed

         14  the plans for the installation, and approved the

         15  plans. At that point a work permit will be issued by

         16  the Department of Buildings. Construction begins by

         17  a licensed contractor, at various points of the

         18  construction process the Fire Department inspectors

         19  are called out to witness pressure tests pouring of

         20  concrete, various things, test of leak detection

         21  systems.

         22                 Upon completion of the installation

         23  the Fire Department sends a letter back to the

         24  Building Department indicating that the installation

         25  has been installed according to the approved plan,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  signed off with the Building Department and the Fire

          3  Department storage permit for motor fuel is issued.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

          5  Boyland, you have a question?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Hi. Welcome,

          7  gentlemen.

          8                 My question pertains to, in my

          9  district we are doing a large amount of building,

         10  new construction and rehab on buildings, what we

         11  find is that when we are looking to do

         12  ground-breaking on some of the older lands that have

         13  been deemed by the City planning as in three, which

         14  is manufacturer, which I mean you can put gas

         15  stations and things like that, and quick Jiffy Lube

         16  and things like that on these kinds of particular

         17  lands as not being residential, that there is a

         18  large amount of seepage in the land from previous

         19  gas stations, from previous entities that were

         20  there. Because of this spillage, it causes us not to

         21  be able to move forward on the new development of

         22  the housing.

         23                 What I really want to know is, does

         24  this bill, how do you or your department actually

         25  address the seepage and is it laid on the
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          2  responsibility of the developer or because it was

          3  not the developer's fault, unless you say it was HPD

          4  or the City's land and they were trying to auction

          5  the land or get rid of the land, what role do you

          6  play in repairing that particular problem so we can

          7  start new development on that land?

          8                 MR. HANSEN: Well, this subchapter of

          9  the Fire Code does require that tanks that are being

         10  taken out of service be done so in accordance with

         11  the rules of the Fire Commissioner. This bill does

         12  not detail that process. However, I would say about

         13  six months ago or a year, we revised, the Fire

         14  Department revised its rules to require, to clarify

         15  really the requirements for underground tank owners

         16  to take, when they are taking them out of service --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: How long ago

         18  was this?

         19                 MR. HANSEN: I would say it was in the

         20  last six months or so, it was adopted.

         21                 This is consistent now, there are

         22  State Department of Environmental Conservation

         23  regulations that when you are closing a system,

         24  which includes if you are going out of business or

         25  whatever it is, you are supposed to do certain, a
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          2  site review and a number of other requirements.

          3                 We have revised our rules to require

          4  that an owner document -- we have had prior

          5  documentation requirements, but now we have made

          6  them clearer and we have required, we have imposed

          7  some additional requirements to make sure in a

          8  number of cases that it be done by a licensed, that

          9  the document be prepared by a licensed professional,

         10  but they have to document that the tank has been

         11  sealed in accordance with state and federal

         12  regulations and our own requirements, and that

         13  involves purging the tank of any remaining contents

         14  and sealing it so that it can't be used again.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So what

         16  happens to the gas stations or the land prior to six

         17  months? What happens now? Let's just say they closed

         18  a year and a half ago, and I just got in office a

         19  year and a half ago and now we want to build on that

         20  particular land?

         21                 MR. HANSEN: There have always been

         22  requirements that systems -- the Fire Department has

         23  always had certain requirements that when people

         24  bring things out of, take them out of service they

         25  are supposed to file certain paperwork. We have now
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          2  tightened that up and clarified that.

          3                 Basically what that means is that if

          4  we come across a tank that we have a record of or we

          5  discover that is no longer in use, we can, you know,

          6  issue a violation or appropriate documents to compel

          7  them to bring it out of service.

          8                 Now, this is not going to --

          9  obviously, the Fire Department is not an

         10  Environmental Protection Agency.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         12                 MR. HANSEN: I mean, we don't go out

         13  and remediate and all of that sort of thing. There

         14  are all sorts of federal and state regulations

         15  governing that. Our part in that process is just to

         16  ensure that if we have a record of somebody who has

         17  a tank, because they have to have a Fire Department

         18  permit to use, to store fuel in the tank, that when

         19  they take it out of service, that they do so

         20  properly and make sure that it is now clean and it

         21  is no longer going to continue to potentially leak,

         22  but we --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What do you

         24  do if they are out of business but they had to go

         25  through the steps with the Fire Department, the
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          2  Building Department, so and so, and now they are no

          3  longer in business but yet there is seepage in the

          4  land; what is the repercussions of that?

          5                 MR. HANSEN: We will never know if

          6  there is seepage because --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let's say --

          8                 MR. HANSEN:  But if they are not

          9  closed --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let's just

         11  say we came in, the contractors came in and they did

         12  an environmental testing and it was found that there

         13  were oil deposits or deposits in the land, what

         14  happens now?

         15                 MR. HANSEN: Well, if they have not

         16  filed proof that the tank was taken out of service I

         17  assume we would issue a violation to the owner of

         18  the property to correct the condition.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: The new

         20  owner, not the old owner.

         21                 MR. HANSEN: Well, it would be whoever

         22  is the owner, I guess that is the thing.

         23                 I guess what I am saying is that to

         24  the extent there are problems in the past, I mean

         25  the Fire Department is not going to be the agency
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          2  that can correct all of those problems. What we can

          3  do is to try to be sure that any tanks that we are

          4  now currently regulating or have been regulating

          5  through our permit process --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The problem --

          7                 MR. HANSEN: -- But they are properly

          8  closed up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Would the agency

         10  with that problem be DEP, the Department of

         11  Environmental Protection?

         12                 MR. HANSEN: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         14  Boyland, I let you go into this, this really is not

         15  relevant to this hearing.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just wanted

         17  to, since I had him here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is a

         19  particular problem and I would urge you to really

         20  get in touch with DEP or anyone else we could help

         21  you with on your specific problem.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Sure. I mean,

         23  it is relevant --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We did have a

         25  hearing in the fact of was there compliance and
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          2  there was leakage, but right now in this legislation

          3  is futuro in the sense that we want to stop things

          4  from happening in the future, we want to prevent it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I agree. It

          6  is relevant because now we are going through a

          7  zoning process as in my district where we have

          8  businesses coming in and I need to know this

          9  information but I also needed to have the future

         10  information. But thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And it certainly

         12  cries out, it is really the problem of this

         13  Committee in the sense that we should have agencies

         14  who would go out and make sure that they do clean up

         15  the work, okay?

         16                 I am sure Mr. Robles will point out

         17  he has had these problems in the district before.

         18                 Do you have any other questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are

         21  existing provisions of the Administrative Code that

         22  contain detailed regulatory responsibilities for the

         23  installation and operation and maintenance of motor

         24  fuel storage and dispensing equipment.

         25                 Proposed Intro. 531-A would delete
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          2  from the code many of those provisions, and the

          3  memorandum support states the intention to include

          4  them in the proposed Fire Department rules.

          5                 What is the rationale for this? You

          6  alluded to it, but let's say it again for the

          7  record.

          8                 MR. BAZEL: Yes, I indicated earlier I

          9  think our view is that it makes more sense to put

         10  the key provisions in the code, the general

         11  standards, the general prohibited conduct that it is

         12  unlawful to do X without a permit, it is unlawful to

         13  do Y without a license, whatever the case may be,

         14  and the essential key features of the bill in terms

         15  of storage of motor fuel, and establish general

         16  permitting requirements and licensing requirements.

         17  But to leave the details to the rules so that we can

         18  be a little bit more responsive to the changing

         19  needs of the industry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, good.

         21                 The proposed intro would amend

         22  Section 27-440 of the Building Code to allow all

         23  flammable liquids and diesel oil motor vehicle fuel

         24  storage tanks to be installed below ground and

         25  vented to the open air, except for such above ground
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          2  installations that may be authorized by the rules of

          3  the Fire Commissioner.

          4                 Why is it appropriate now to allow

          5  some of the tanks to be installed above ground, that

          6  previously have been installed below ground?

          7                 MR. HANSEN: As you know, the --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And also state

          9  any hazards to this type of installation, and how

         10  the proposed Intro. Would change it?

         11                 MR. BAZEL: Well, let me answer the

         12  first part.

         13                 As you know, one of the reasons for

         14  all the federal concern and regulations and state

         15  involvement in this area is the fact that

         16  underground fuel storage tanks have leaked and have

         17  created significant environmental problems,

         18  therefore, the suggestion has been raised, and over

         19  the years explored and developed, is you know, can

         20  we store things above ground. I think in the past

         21  there were more serious concerns with above ground

         22  storage because of the dangers obviously of

         23  explosion and so forth. But with the new technology,

         24  and it is safer to store things above ground.

         25                 Now, the bill specifically provides
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          2  that we would not allow above ground storage of

          3  flammable motor fuel gasoline because again the

          4  significant hazards that are associated with that.

          5  The proposal that we envision at this time would be

          6  to begin with above-ground storage of diesel fuel in

          7  certain selected areas. And, again, by leaving that

          8  to the rules, we can see based on our experience

          9  whether there is any -- we can loosen that up and

         10  allow more frequent use of it. And I think that the

         11  particulars of the design of these tanks and the

         12  protections I can provide, I think I can leave that

         13  to Jim Hansen.

         14                 MR. HANSEN: With regard to the

         15  hazards of the above-ground tanks, obviously

         16  installing a tank above ground compared to

         17  underground does represent some type of hazard, but

         18  what has developed in the industry is the standard

         19  for above-ground tanks. The tanks that the Fire

         20  Department would be considering would be tanks that

         21  were double wall tanks, that were encased in six

         22  inches of concrete. These are substantial tanks.

         23                 I think the issue of it being above

         24  ground, designed in that manner to the industry

         25  standard that is going on outside of the City, the
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          2  Fire Department is comfortable with that.

          3                 The other issue, the hazards, the

          4  same with underground tanks are overfills, and the

          5  above-ground tanks would have protections from

          6  overfills just the way underground tanks would, and

          7  the delivery person spilling some at the hose, we

          8  would have a catchment basis on the fill connection,

          9  so we would address those hazards with the

         10  above-ground tanks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We still have a

         12  concern about above-ground tanks, and this is

         13  probably based on experiences in other jurisdictions

         14  where they use above-ground tanks.

         15                 MR. BAZEL: Let me just respond to

         16  that. I think an important point that I as a

         17  layperson was surprised to hear is that diesel fuel

         18  is actually chemically very closer, almost identical

         19  to home heating fuel, and as you know, home heating

         20  fuel is in fact above ground in all sorts of private

         21  homes. So, in reality we have been living with

         22  above-ground fuel storage tanks for many years, and

         23  that is why we feel confident that with the

         24  appropriate protections, in the basement of

         25  someone's home it is not like there is going to be a
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          2  car crashing into it or anything and that is why we

          3  need special protections, when you have an

          4  above-ground storage tank in other locations.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right. How

          6  many fuel storage tanks, both above-ground and

          7  underground, are there in New York City that would

          8  be covered by the proposed law?

          9                 MR. BARBARA: This would apply, I mean

         10  certainly this law would apply, the basic

         11  requirements set forth here reply to all

         12  installations, and --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You can't give

         14  me an absolute figure or a ball park figure?

         15                 MR. BARBARA: We weren't prepared to

         16  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe we will

         18  give you an opportunity to get us this information

         19  before the next hearing. And of those with discharge

         20  lines, how many have the capacity of 4,000 gallons

         21  or less have a capacity of more than 4,000?

         22                 And without discharge lines, how many

         23  have a capacity of 4,000 gallons or less?

         24                 MR. BARBARA: We will have to get back

         25  to the committee on those sorts of details.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If you could

          3  give it to us in writing, this is something we want

          4  to know.

          5                 Okay, proposed Intro. No. 531-A would

          6  amend section 27-402 and authorize the Fire

          7  Department Commissioner to issue certificates and

          8  licenses for up to three-year periods, rather than

          9  the current one-year period for operating in the

         10  businesses which are in the business of installing

         11  testing, test repairs, motor fuel storage or working

         12  on dispensing equipment.

         13                 In your memorandum of support you

         14  indicated that this would eliminate the

         15  inconsistency with the provisions of the Fire

         16  Department Code; could you explain the

         17  inconsistencies and how proposed Intro. 531-A would

         18  eliminate this inconsistency?

         19                 MR. BARBARA: Yes, the general

         20  provision that addresses certificates says that they

         21  shall be issued for up to a year. Notwithstanding

         22  that, the fee provisions that are in the code

         23  specifically provide for the issuance of

         24  certificates for, in some cases a three-year period.

         25  It is just, you know, I guess at some point the
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          2  decision was made to impose fees for a three-year

          3  period and they never got around to changing the

          4  other section, so this is just to bring it in line,

          5  and of course the additional time that we would be

          6  providing for the license would be based on the

          7  determination of whether or not there is a need for

          8  more frequent licensing or not. It would give us a

          9  little bit more flexibility if it wasn't felt to be

         10  necessary to have everyone come in every year to

         11  renew the certificate.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I might

         13  indicate to you that the Finance Division of the

         14  City Council, in order to properly prepare the

         15  fiscal ramification of this legislation has

         16  submitted to me certain questions and I am not going

         17  to go through them now because I think these require

         18  research. I am going to give them to you at the end

         19  of the hearing with the expectation that these

         20  answers will be forthcoming, if you have the answers

         21  obviously.

         22                 MR. BARBARA: Yes, of course we will

         23  assist you in that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In your proposed

         25  rules you eliminate the requirement that tanks be
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          2  pressure tested every ten years in favor of biannual

          3  functionality tests.

          4                 Will you explain the difference

          5  between pressure testing and functionality testing?

          6                 MR. HANSEN: Yes, pressure testing is

          7  a method of trying to find out what tanks or what

          8  piping may be leaking and it is a procedure or a

          9  technique that has been replaced in the industry by

         10  a procedure called the precision testing, which is a

         11  procedure that doesn't put pressure on the tank but

         12  is able to pick up very small leaks.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

         14  functionality --

         15                 MR. HANSEN: That is not the

         16  functionality test. That is a precision test.

         17                 What this new regulation does --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How does that

         19  work?

         20                 MR. HANSEN: The functionality tests

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, the

         23  precision test.

         24                 MR. HANSEN: The precision test is

         25  various different technologies that go on, but it is
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          2  a little difficult to categorize them all. They go

          3  to certain testing laboratories and they have to

          4  have their test procedures certified as being able

          5  to detect a very small leak, and then they get that

          6  certification, but the technology varies from

          7  manufacturer to manufacturer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Give a for

          9  instance of the type of technology.

         10                 MR. HANSEN: Well, the simplest one

         11  that came out originally was basically a standpipe

         12  test, where they would fill a tank up with product

         13  completely to the top and they would put a column of

         14  liquid on top of the tank and they would fill that

         15  and they would monitor the level in the standpipe.

         16                 They have other tests where they put

         17  radioactive material into the annulus (sic) base of

         18  tanks and then they monitor the area around the tank

         19  for radioactive material.

         20                 You know, it runs the whole stretch,

         21  you know, the different technology that people come

         22  up with?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there some

         24  danger in pressure testing as opposed to the other

         25  types of testing?
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          2                 MR. HANSEN: Well, pressure testing,

          3  that is the reason why most of the industry went

          4  away from pressure testing, because if you had a

          5  tank that perhaps was marginally leaking or about to

          6  leak, by putting a high pressure on a tank you may

          7  actually cause the tank to leak where it wasn't

          8  leaking previously.

          9                 That is the reason why about ten

         10  years ago the Fire Department got away from

         11  requiring pressure tests and went to precision

         12  tests.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now tell us

         14  about the functionality.

         15                 MR. HANSEN: Functionality tests,

         16  these new tanks that are being installed have very

         17  sophisticated leak detection systems. They detect

         18  leaks in the annulus base of the tanks, between the

         19  tanks they detect leaks in the annulus base of the

         20  piping, they detect leaks under the dispensers, and

         21  all of these signals go to a panel and the Fire

         22  Department, in looking at that, said if our leak

         23  detection systems are functioning properly, then

         24  there is no need to do a pressure test on the tank,

         25  it was our opinion. So what we were looking to do
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          2  was to require a two-year test on the leak detection

          3  system where the Fire Department representative will

          4  go out with a licensed contractor, just to verify

          5  that the leak detection systems were all functioning

          6  properly and once we had that assurance then we knew

          7  that if there was a leak, the leak would be

          8  triggered by the alarm.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         10                 I guess the basic question to ask you

         11  then, and you pretty much answered it in your

         12  statement, in other words, you support 531-A and the

         13  reasons you set forth.

         14                 I guess the other question is, in our

         15  hearings on the under-ground storage tanks in

         16  February in March, one of the big issues was, with

         17  the federal and state government, was the inspection

         18  and enforcement, and at that time, if you remember,

         19  because there was no state law in conformity with

         20  the federal law, nor did we have any City, we relied

         21  on the old law plus the rules and the regulations of

         22  the Fire Department, the enforcement of the federal

         23  law was left up to the federal regulators and I

         24  think the whole State of New York, New Jersey, the

         25  Virgin Islands and everything else, I think they had
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          2  a total of ten or 12 inspectors, so that will be

          3  replaced now with the fact that the City now has

          4  regulations in, and the state still has not passed

          5  the law consistent with the federal law, right? The

          6  state hasn't passed the law, so now we are beating

          7  the state by passing it in the City, and, therefore,

          8  the enforcement now will be done by the federal

          9  regulations, as well as the Fire Department.

         10                 MR. BAZEL: Our role is in --

         11  obviously, as you know, is not as an environmental

         12  enforcement agency, but to the extent that people

         13  are coming in to us to file plans, we are

         14  monitoring, reviewing them, and as part of the

         15  review we look to see that they are in compliance --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you are

         17  making sure that they conform to the rules and

         18  regulations that you have set up?

         19                 MR. BAZEL: That's correct. And the

         20  federal and state.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know that you

         22  are in the process or have been in the process of

         23  drafting some of these rules and regulations.

         24                 MR. BAZEL: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How soon after
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          2  we pass this legislation, which I anticipate, will

          3  we have these City regulations?

          4                 MR. BAZEL: Well, the bill provides,

          5  you know, for a 120-day effective date, delay in the

          6  effective date. We think we will be able to complete

          7  the CAPA process well within that. You know, we hope

          8  to publish them very promptly after the enactment of

          9  the bill.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are in the

         11  process of doing that now.

         12                 MR. BAZEL: Yes, we are finalizing

         13  them and we would believe that once the bill is

         14  enacted, of course we have to publish them and give

         15  the public 30-day notice. And we will have a hearing

         16  of course, and people can come in and give their

         17  comments.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who then will be

         19  responsible? Your agency, as you said, would have

         20  its delineated responsibility, whose responsibility

         21  would it be to enforce the new law and your

         22  regulations? What agency?

         23                 MR. BAZEL: I am not sure I --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You would be

         25  looking at the plans and making sure that --
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          2                 MR. BAZEL: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But once it has

          4  been installed, who is going to check to see if they

          5  have done it properly and that all of these tests

          6  that have to be made are being made?

          7                 MR. BAZEL: The Fire Department would

          8  do that. Anything about the installation of the

          9  tanks and then the operation and maintenance of the

         10  tanks.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there a role

         12  here for the Department of Environmental Protection

         13  or the Buildings Department under this new law and

         14  new regs promulgated by you?

         15                 MR. BAZEL: I don't think this bill

         16  addresses that. My understanding, and I don't really

         17  want to speak for the Department of Environmental

         18  Protection, but obviously if there are spills or

         19  other evidence of environmental dangers or hazards,

         20  they get involved.

         21                 You know, in terms of this bill, this

         22  bill doesn't specifically involve that role.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Then I guess the

         24  next question that follows; and that is, what level

         25  of staffing are you going to provide for the
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          2  enforcement of this new Intro, the new law and the

          3  rules and regulations?

          4                 MR. BARBARA: We have our Bulk Fuel

          5  Safety Unit and our District Office System, and

          6  there won't be any increase in staffing, we can

          7  handle it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You think you

          9  will be able to do the job?

         10                 MR. BARBARA: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I am also

         12  including, my recollection was that there is a lot

         13  of City-owned under-ground storage tanks that are

         14  out of compliance, and what are we going to be doing

         15  about getting that -- that is really the Department

         16  of --

         17                 MR. BAZEL: Yes. As I understand it, I

         18  am not personally involved in that, you know, there

         19  is an initiative to address that issue. We are not

         20  the people that are responsible. Here we are talking

         21  about the Fire Department as a regulatory authority,

         22  not as the --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

         24  that, but whose responsibility is it, the Department

         25  of Building's and the Department of Environmental
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          2  Protection?

          3                 MR. BAZEL: You know, my understanding

          4  is it was a whole Citywide effort and I really don't

          5  know -- specifically I know the Department of Design

          6  and Construction, I know the last hearing they were

          7  testifying on this matter.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Department

          9  of Design and Construction Commissioner was here

         10  before us at that time. He has since left the

         11  administration, or is about to leave the

         12  administration.

         13                 And you do coordinate your activities

         14  with the other agencies? In other words, if you

         15  should come across in the course of your work an

         16  underground tank which you believe is leaking and

         17  causing a problem, there will be notification made

         18  to the agency which has jurisdiction.

         19                 MR. BAZEL: Yes, that's correct. We

         20  will notify EPA and all the agencies.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how often

         22  should the owner or operator of any underground

         23  storage tank expect a visit from the Department's

         24  inspectors? If you can give an idea.

         25                 MR. BARBARA: Well, with regard to the
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          2  gasoline storage and the service station, you should

          3  see an inspector for a permit once a year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There will be

          5  cyclical inspections. In other words --

          6                 MR. BARBARA: Annually we go back to

          7  each service station to renew the storage permit.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very good.

          9                 Okay, I think that's it. Does anybody

         10  else have any other questions?

         11                 Gentlemen, thank you very much. I

         12  look forward to having the next hearing. There is

         13  further testimony here and I hope you will have

         14  somebody remain. And where you think we need to make

         15  some changes, please let us know. But as far as we

         16  can understand the law, the Intro. as set forth is

         17  fully acceptable to the Council.  There will always

         18  be some technical typographical errors.

         19                 MR. BARBARA: Thank you very much, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So if you see

         22  anything in there, please peruse it again,

         23  everything can use a second or third reading.

         24                 MR. BARBARA: Thank you very much, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 MR. BAZEL: Thank you.

          3                 MR. HANSEN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I want to thank

          5  you on behalf of the Council for your cooperation on

          6  this. I appreciate it. I think with the work that

          7  you have done, maybe it will make this a safer City.

          8                 The next witness is Kenny, of the New

          9  York State Petroleum Council. And then we have Vince

         10  Betette, Mobil General Manager and Donald Clarke,

         11  Mobil Director of Government Relations.

         12                 None of you are unknown to us,

         13  especially Cathy.

         14                 It is always a pleasure to have you

         15  on the other end of the microphone.

         16                 MS. KENNY: Thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 Good afternoon, Chairman Michels and

         19  members of the Committee on Environmental

         20  Protection. For the record, I am Cathy Kenny and I

         21  serve as the Associate Director of the Petroleum

         22  Council.

         23                 To my immediate left is Vince

         24  Betette, Manager for Mobil Oil Corporation on the

         25  Eastern Seaboard, and to his left is Donald Clarke,
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          2  Director of Government Relations for Mobil.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who I met

          4  previously.

          5                 MS. KENNY: The Petroleum Council

          6  actually is a Division of the American Petroleum

          7  Institute which represents over 400 companies

          8  involved in all aspects of the oil and gas industry,

          9  including exploration, production, refining,

         10  transportation and marketing. In New York, the

         11  Petroleum Council's members include BPAmoco

         12  Corporation, CITGO Petroleum Corporation, Motiva

         13  Enterprises, LLC (the former Shell and Texaco

         14  marketers), Exxon Corporation and Mobil Corporation.

         15  On behalf of our member companies, I would like to

         16  thank you for the invitation to testify on proposed

         17  Intro. No. 531-A relative to the installation and

         18  maintenance of underground storage fuel tanks.

         19                 At the outset, permit me to recognize

         20  the Committee's work, and in particular, that of

         21  Chairman Michels and Council Member John Sabini, in

         22  examining the whole issue of UST safety. The

         23  hearings which were conducted by this Committee last

         24  February and March did much in terms of highlighting

         25  the importance of compliance with federal standards
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          2  for USTs.

          3                 They also served to prompt both the

          4  industry and the affected agencies to finalize work

          5  which began as long ago as 1992 to update both the

          6  Fire Department Code and the Department of Buildings

          7  Codes relative to gasoline service station

          8  underground storage tanks.

          9                 You cracked the whip so-to-speak, and

         10  we responded.

         11                 Proposed Intro. 531-A represents the

         12  culmination of a collaborative effort by the Fire

         13  Department, the petroleum industry, installation

         14  contractors, cathodic engineers and other

         15  professionals, who served on a committee to update

         16  the outmoded code and to incorporate the very best

         17  of proven technologies and knowledge about UST

         18  materials, piping, equipment and overfill

         19  protection.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is a

         21  cathodic engineer?

         22                 MS. KENNY: That is the guy --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I thought I knew

         24  every type of engineer.

         25                 MS. KENNY: Well, you know, I was an
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          2  English major and the way the guys explained to me

          3  is they have an electric current that goes around

          4  the steel tank and some magic happens and it

          5  prevents the tank from rusting.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the degree,

          7  I know there is civil engineering, mechanical

          8  engineering --

          9                 MS. KENNY: The guy's business card

         10  said cathodic engineer, I presume he is a regular

         11  engineer, but has a special -- there are actually an

         12  association I think of cathodic engineers, very

         13  small arcane knowledge.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You know the

         15  difference between a mechanical engineer and a civil

         16  engineer?

         17                 MS. KENNY: No. Do you?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. The

         19  mechanical engineer makes weapons, a civil engineer

         20  makes targets.

         21                 MS. KENNY: Well, since you are a

         22  lawyer you are trying to get back, since it is not a

         23  lawyer's joke you might as well use it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: One of the few

         25  engineering jokes I know.
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          2                 Okay, go ahead. I am sorry to

          3  interrupt you.

          4                 MS. KENNY: That's okay.

          5                 In some respects, proposed Intro.

          6  531-A may be considered more stringent than the

          7  newly enforced federal standards.

          8                 For example, federal standards

          9  require only one type of overfill alarm system. This

         10  proposed amendment system requires both electronic

         11  and mechanical alarm systems. One system serves as a

         12  back up to the other.

         13                 Proposed Intro. 531-A is also an

         14  improvement over current code provisions. For

         15  example, this amendment requires double-walled

         16  fiberglass tanks for the sake of better leak

         17  protection and spill containment.

         18                 The current code still has on the

         19  books a provision permitting single wall tanks,

         20  although the major oil companies did not use such

         21  types of installations for some time. There are

         22  other examples. However, since the Administration

         23  has already explained the bill's major provisions, I

         24  will just use this opportunity to endorse its

         25  interpretation of the proposed laws affect as
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          2  presented at today's hearing and it's memorandum of

          3  support.

          4                 Parenthetically I would like to note

          5  that proposed Intro. 531-A also represents the first

          6  opportunity the industry has had to work with City

          7  agencies on a major project such as this code

          8  revision, at least in my recent memory.

          9                 With its success, we trust that we

         10  may continue to work alongside the Council and this

         11  Administration in drafting regulations that will

         12  implement the bill's provisions if or when the bill

         13  is enacted into law.

         14                 With the experience of proposed

         15  Intro. No. 531-A under our belts, we remain hopeful

         16  that the kind of cooperation this bill inured will

         17  continue to prove to be a mutual benefit.

         18                 Serving on the Fire Department and

         19  DOB committees, for instance, the industry was able

         20  to identify and bring to the table outside and

         21  disinterested authorities on cathodic protection,

         22  seismic analysis an structural support of USTs that

         23  neither agency would have in all likelihood been

         24  unable to accomplish without additional resources.

         25                 When all was said and done, the
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          2  industry, for its part, had a better understanding

          3  of how the agencies' inspections and other processes

          4  were.

          5                 Mutual respect for each other's

          6  expertise also developed over the many months the

          7  committees met and from this process, I think better

          8  communication was established between the

          9  Administration and the regulated community.

         10                 We trust only that this spirit of

         11  cooperation sustains itself as we move into the

         12  second stage of promulgating the regulations.

         13                 In closing, I would like to express

         14  my appreciation to the Council for spurring us on. I

         15  would be negligent, however, if I didn't recognize

         16  and express the industry's gratitude to both the DOB

         17  and the Fire Department for maintaining such high

         18  professional standards which were made evident

         19  throughout this process.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         22  very much. Is there any other testimony?

         23                 MR. BETETTE: Yes. Good afternoon,

         24  Chairman Michels and members of the Environmental

         25  Protection Committee.
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          2                 Once again, I am Vince Betette, and I

          3  am Manager for Mobil for New York State.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We don't have a

          5  copy of your statement.

          6                 MS. KENNY: We can get it for you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You can supply

          8  it to us.

          9                 Continue. We feel we understand it

         10  better when we read it as well as hear it.

         11                 MR. BETETTE: Okay.

         12                 My duties include responsibility for

         13  the sales of motor fuel through Mobil branded

         14  service stations operated by independent dealers and

         15  distributors.

         16                 Today I am pleased to record Mobil's

         17  support for adoption of Intro. No. 531-A.

         18                 Intro. No. 531-A, as you have heard,

         19  will result in a number of improvements in the rules

         20  that apply to the underground storage petroleum

         21  products.

         22                 We are particularly pleased that this

         23  very helpful legislation is the product of

         24  cooperation and hard work by government and

         25  industry.
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          2                 City agencies, including the Fire

          3  Department, and the Building Department, have worked

          4  hand-in-hand with the Petroleum Council and the

          5  industry to iron out the differences, and to come up

          6  with a reasonable piece of legislation that

          7  addresses the interest of the public, government and

          8  industry.

          9                 Again, thank you for this opportunity

         10  to record our support for the passage of Intro. No.

         11  531-A.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         13                 Let me ask whoever wants to field

         14  this question: To what extent are the provisions of

         15  proposed Intro. 531-A consistent with the industry

         16  standards and the regulatory provisions of federal

         17  and state law and regulations?

         18                 MS. KENNY: I guess I can handle that

         19  one. The industry has been using double-walled

         20  fiberglass tanks for some time. They favor them now

         21  over the steel tanks, so I would say in respect is a

         22  compliance, a little ahead of the regulations, if

         23  you want to look at it that way.

         24                 In other parts of the country where

         25  installations are done, we presented those to the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Buildings Department to advise them on better ways

          3  actually to install tanks. The Department was

          4  requiring concrete vaults to put tanks in and that

          5  is actually not the best way to support them in all

          6  circumstances, so those are examples where I think

          7  the industry had some influence on some of the

          8  provisions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, as you

         10  know, this legislation to a great extent is enabling

         11  legislation, by that I mean it is enabling the Fire

         12  Commissioner to develop all sorts of new rules and

         13  regulations, and with the general idea of keeping up

         14  with the state-of-the-art, we are not having to come

         15  back and change the law each time, since technology

         16  as we know in these times changes very quickly, and

         17  it is important to have that technology put into

         18  effect as soon as possible.

         19                 Are you working with them, and have

         20  you had an opportunity to peruse the proposed rules

         21  and regulations which will be promulgated and put

         22  into effect as a result of this legislation?

         23                 MS. KENNY: Actually that was the work

         24  of the Committee, the regulations which are not

         25  before the Council here. And I have a draft that is
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          2  dated May 1988, I understand there is a later draft

          3  and I presume the Administration after the bill is

          4  passed will share that information with us, since we

          5  and others served on their Committee.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might say that

          7  sometimes we get involved with other issues and then

          8  I would ask you, as well as the Department, if

          9  somebody is still here, that after we pass this

         10  legislation and are in the process of developing and

         11  promulgating these new rules and regulations, to

         12  keep us informed of it and let us take a look at it

         13  and help work on it with you, because we are all

         14  dedicated to the same thing, and this is one

         15  instance where I am convinced of it, and that is we

         16  are trying to make the delivery of the storage of

         17  this fluid or whatever you want to call it, fuel, as

         18  safe as possible for both the industry and for the

         19  public at large.

         20                 MS. KENNY: We share that goal too.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know I said

         22  that in the beginning. I said we all share the same

         23  goal, and to make sure that person and property is

         24  safe-guarded as a result of dealing with sometimes

         25  highly flammable liquids.
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          2                 So, I want to thank you. I think we

          3  have a question from Ms. Boyland and then Mr.

          4  Leffler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we have with

          7  us a very distinguished Council Member from the

          8  Borough of Queens, Helen Marshall. Welcome.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I assume you

         10  heard my question earlier to the Fire Department,

         11  and I hope that you would keep that in mind.

         12                 My second question is, in terms of

         13  statistics, obviously this bill, dispensing the

         14  technology that is more protective of course is a

         15  good bill in terms of our community and seepage of

         16  oils and things into our land. Do you have maybe

         17  some statistics in terms of the land mass

         18  contamination in urban cities that have happened?

         19  Because I know we look through with the Department

         20  of Environmental Protection and we find them

         21  eventually, as I said, when we build houses on land

         22  that was deemed for a manufacturer and we rezone it

         23  for residential, we find that we can't build. And I

         24  will give some examples.

         25                 Not in my district but in East New
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          2  York, it used to be a garbage dump at one time, and

          3  this is totally different from your scenario, but we

          4  are finding that there is lots of contamination in

          5  the land that causes a grave problem when we want to

          6  put the stilts in so we can begin to build.

          7                 My question to you is, in terms of

          8  your land mass and the contamination, are there any

          9  records in terms of the amount of stations that have

         10  left residue that have caused large amounts of

         11  dollars to have to go in to do the land --

         12                 MR. BETETTE: On behalf of Mobil, and

         13  I will speak for Mobil in New York City, I don't

         14  have any statistics but I can say to you, in answer

         15  to your question number one and number two, you

         16  know, where we own a piece of property, or in fact

         17  if we lease a piece of property and we choose to

         18  leave it, we clean up.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, good.

         20                 MR. BETETTE: We clean up. That is our

         21  responsibility.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That means if

         23  we find something that Mobil used, we can call you

         24  and say, hey.

         25                 MR. BETETTE: If you find the owner,
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          2  then the owner should be responsible.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That

          4  essentially was my question earlier.

          5                 MS. KENNY: The primary agency for

          6  that kind of thing, the jurisdiction falls under the

          7  state DEC.

          8                 The state also has a spill fund, so

          9  if the state can't identify a responsible party, or

         10  the responsible party is not in the position to pay,

         11  the use of that oil spill fund, and it is actually

         12  controlled by the New York State Comptroller's

         13  Office.

         14                 In your case, as far as statistics

         15  are concerned, DEC has a database where it indicates

         16  where all sorts of spills have been noted, and you

         17  can call DEC and if you have a question before you

         18  buy property and have them test it.

         19                 The third thing I would add is that

         20  there is a foot, if you have heard of the expression

         21  or term "brown fields", all right?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: A term that we

         24  deal with a lot in this Committee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, on this
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          2  Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is a term

          4  that we use in this Committee quite often.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, Stanley

          6  has coined that.

          7                 MS. KENNY: Well, the state hasn't

          8  come to rest on that issue. It is very complicated

          9  when it particularly comes to liability. But

         10  essentially the theory is you don't have to get the

         11  dirt clean enough to eat, if the use is going to be

         12  something like a non-residential use. Sounds like

         13  your problem, though, is going from a manufacturing

         14  space to a residential one.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Give me an

         16  idea, I am not a chemist, give me an idea of some of

         17  the chemicals that before this is enacted that might

         18  seep into the ground and the effects on the

         19  community, some of the things that it might cause in

         20  terms of health issues.

         21                 I don't know if you have that

         22  information, but can you share the chemicals that we

         23  might find.

         24                 MS. KENNY: Well, there is toluene and

         25  gasoline, there are oxygenates in gasoline, there is
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          2  still I think some benzene, which is as you know a

          3  carcinogenic. And each company has its own

          4  proprietary additives which makes Mobil's gasoline

          5  different from someone else's.

          6                 I don't honestly know, other than the

          7  damage to the property, when you have a spill none

          8  of them are good.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right. We are

         10  finding that out. Painfully we are finding that out,

         11  that we can't begin to move forward until we do land

         12  excavations and that is very, very costly to have

         13  someone come in. And those were really my major

         14  concerns in terms of -- I mean, of course, you know,

         15  the quality of life. I don't represent an area where

         16  they are going to be planting cornfields and things

         17  like that, so it is not affecting our food, but it

         18  does affect, maybe the seepage into the pipes for

         19  drinking water and things of that nature, and can

         20  these chemicals be dissolved into pipes?

         21                 MS. KENNY: Well, in the City here we

         22  get our water from the reservoir. The articles that

         23  I have read where it has been a problem is where

         24  people are using wells and they have their own wells

         25  and it seeps into the aquifer and contaminates the
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          2  well.

          3                 Here in New York City, as far as I

          4  know, and I think in Queens, in Sheldon Leffler's

          5  district, they might have had private water but I

          6  think it has been taken over.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Aquifer no

          8  longer is used.

          9                 MS. KENNY: Okay, they don't use it,

         10  right? It is part of the City's system now?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         12                 MR. CLARKE: Yes, it is.

         13                 MS. KENNY: So I think in terms --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr.

         15  Spigner finally won his battle on that.

         16                 MS. KENNY: I think in terms of

         17  contaminating the soil and the earth around it is

         18  probably the extent of it, but that brings down

         19  property values, obviously.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         21                 MS. KENNY: And once it enters the

         22  dirt and the soil around it, it is hazardous

         23  material and has to be disposed of.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I must amend

         25  that. That Jamaica Water Company does no longer
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          2  exist, the aquifer does exist, and we still use it.

          3                 MS. KENNY: Okay.

          4                 MR. CLARKE: If I just may tailgate on

          5  that a bit, the real issue I think is preventing the

          6  leaks and the seepage, and this legislation goes a

          7  good way towards that issue. Because as Cathy points

          8  out, none of the constituent elements of gasoline or

          9  fuel are desirable in terms of seeping into the

         10  ground. So, whether it is this ingredient or that

         11  ingredient we don't want it to happen and so we are

         12  focused on a prevention.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I agree with

         14  you. And nice to see you again, by the way.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Leffler. I

         16  might note that we are also joined by Mr. Carrion of

         17  the Bronx, and also that we did receive

         18  communication that Mr. Fiala of Staten Island is

         19  making us aware that he would not be here and for a

         20  good reason, and therefore he has an excuse and we

         21  hereby excuse him, if we have such power.

         22                 Mr. Leffler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Briefly, this

         24  bill looks to me to be more detailed than most bills

         25  that we deal with, and yet my impression is, correct
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          2  me if I am wrong, whether you support each and every

          3  element of the legislation or the legislation as a

          4  whole, and my impression is you do; is that right?

          5                 MS. KENNY: Yes.

          6                 MR. CLARKE: That's right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Okay, thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, Council

         10  Member Marshall.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I am on the

         12  bill so of course I am very much in favor of it. We

         13  have noticed throughout our community in my district

         14  and elsewhere that, you know, it is a total upheaval

         15  of many of the gasoline stations, they are putting

         16  in new tanks, wonderful new equipment, I was

         17  wondering how is it working out in the industry,

         18  this massive upheaval, this is a federal and city

         19  endeavor to comply and to make, to control leakage

         20  and so on?

         21                 Some of the companies I see are just

         22  completely going under, being taken over by other

         23  larger companies, Texaco in particular, how is it

         24  going?

         25                 MR. BETETTE: How is business going in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  New York? Business is going well for Mobil in New

          3  York.

          4                 In fact, in terms of the capital

          5  dollars we spend, and I handle the entire state, the

          6  majority is being spent in the boroughs of New York

          7  City.

          8                 The fact is we just constructed a new

          9  convenience store on Northern Boulevard on Woodside,

         10  and we have a big convenience store carwash under

         11  construction at Cropsey and Neptune, we just

         12  completed construction about a year ago on Bushwick

         13  Avenue, one on Fourth Avenue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I wasn't

         15  really thinking in terms of profitability, because I

         16  am sure it is. I am really more referring to how are

         17  you working out with the Fire Department and the

         18  construction problems and so on? How are they coming

         19  along?

         20                 MR. BETETTE: Very well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: It has been

         22  smooth?

         23                 MR. BETETTE: It has been very smooth.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 In fact, Mobil gas is in my car right

          3  now.

          4                 MR. BETETTE: Great. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This bill, of

          6  course, is directed toward the entire industry, not

          7  just Mobil, but nevertheless I feel compelled to

          8  make a disclosure that I am a stockholder, although

          9  very, very minor, in Mobil Oil.

         10                 MR. BETETTE: Terrific.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I must disclose

         12  that. I own I think 128 shares of Mobil.

         13                 MR. BETETTE: Good.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Any other

         15  questions?

         16                 There being none, I thank you very

         17  much for your testimony.

         18                 Are there any other witnesses here

         19  who wish to testify? There being none, thank you

         20  very much. We will be adjourning, and we will

         21  hopefully be convening very shortly in order to pass

         22  this legislation, after, again, reviewing all of the

         23  testimony.

         24                 Thank you. The meeting is adjourned.

         25                 MR. CLARKE: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BETETTE: Thank you.

          3                 MS. KENNY: Thank you.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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